MINUTES
Approved by the Committee
Land Use and Housing Study Committee
Thursday, August 14, 2025
8:00 A.M. PST
Sandpoint City Council Chambers
Boise, Idaho

Legislative members in attendance: Cochairs Senator Jim Woodward and Representative Jordan
Redman; Representatives Kyle Harris and Megan Egbert; Senators Ben Toews and Ali Rabe;
Nonlegislative members in attendance: Matthew Adams (via Zoom, American Society of Landscape
Architects), Jason Blais (via Zoom, Assoc. of Building Officials - Boise), Ken Burgess (HomeBuilders
Assoc.), Trevor Chadwick (Assoc. Idaho Cities); Jeremy Grimm (City of Sandpoint), Jerri Henry
(Dept. of Envir. Quality), Sherry Maupin (Assoc. of Counties), Max Pond (Assoc. REALTORS), Caleb
Roope (via Zoom, Pacific Companies), William Smith for Sean Schupack (via Zoom, Assoc. of Gen.
Contractors), Jonathon Spendlove (American Planning Assoc.), Tyler Wolters (Apt. Assoc.); Legislative
Services Office (LSO) staff: Monica Harrington, Alex Hatfield (via Zoom), and Jennifer Kish. Absent:
Andy Erstad (American Inst. of Architects) and Bobbi-Jo Meuleman (Boise Chamber).

Others in attendance: Patricia Walker, James Casper - Habitat for Humanity; Hilary Patterson - APA
Idaho; Jake Garringer - self; Amie Pace - North Idaho Building Contractors Assoc.; Lance Sayers

- Assoc. of Cities; Chrystie Horvath - Bonner Community Housing Agency; and Kyle Schreiber -
Sandpoint City Council.

NOTE: Presentations and handouts provided by the presenters/speakers are posted to the Idaho
Legislature's website https://legislature.idaho.gov/sessioninfo/2025/interim/ and copies of those
items are on file at the Legislative Services Office in the State Capitol. Recordings of the meeting
may be available under the committee's listing on the website.

Welcome / Approval of Minutes

At 8:00 a.m. PST, Cochair Woodward called the meeting to order; a silent roll call was taken.
Sandpoint Mayor Jeremy Grimm was invited to make welcoming comments. Cochair Woodward
noted that Austin VanDerHeyden, slotted to speak at 11:00 on the agenda, was unable to present to
the committee.

Kaniksu Land Trust

At 8:05 a.m., Katie Egland Cox, Executive Director of the Kaniksu Land Trust, provided her
presentation Community Housing Trust to the committee. Ms. Cox explained why the land trust was
interested in home building in the community and how it affected public land access.

e Rep. Harris asked how a foreclosure would be handled with this model. Ms. Cox explained that
it was written into the ground lease. She noted that this project supported the homeowner
process as a whole and a relationship with the homeowner is maintained to be aware of that
situation before it occurs.

e Cochair Redman asked whether the 2.5 equity appreciation was annualized. Ms. Cox explained
that it was annualized and would continue to grow over the lifetime of the ownership. Cochair
Redman asked how the land was acquired. Ms. Cox stated that it was purchased by the trust.
Cochair Redman asked whether the trust worked with local builders. Ms. Cox answered in
the affirmative.

e Mr. Chadwick asked about the infrastructure when the land was acquired. Ms. Cox explained
that the infrastructure existed when the trust acquired the land; the trust paid for the value of
the land. Mr. Chadwick inquired whether any zoning changes were made and the justification.
Ms. Cox reported that it was initially zoned as industrial and requested to be changed to light


https://legislature.idaho.gov/sessioninfo/2025/interim/lhsc/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250814_lhsc_02_COX_CHT Presentation - City Councils and Housing Roundtable.pdf

industrial; but due to other existing zoning and uses, the request was denied. Mr. Chadwick
asked about garages and any requests for parking restrictions. Ms. Cox explained that the
properties had carports and that this project did not have any restriction issues.

e Sen. Toews inquired about the number of applicants. Ms. Cox reported that there were 75
applications for the six homes. Sen. Toews asked about smaller homes and lot sizes. Ms. Cox
noted that the lot size and architectural designs had already been determined and the project
was limited to that size.

e Ms. Maupin asked about the trust's staffing and funding to support the work. Ms. Cox reported
that the trust had five full-time staff and ten part-time staff members; however, this was not
typically its focus. She added that the funding for her to focus on the project was from grants
and dedicated donations.

e Mr. Adams inquired about a return on investment (ROI) study, especially on tax or fee relief,
and an evaluation over ten years. Ms. Cox supported such a study but had not completed
one. She also advocated for funding at the state level to assist cities in recovering any waivers
on such projects.

e Mr. Chadwick asked whether the trust's model only worked with developed land or could it
work with bare land. Ms. Cox reported that the trust's model allowed them to work with both
developed and undeveloped land.

Panhandle Affordable Housing Alliance (PAHA)

At 9:50 a.m., Maggie Lyons, Executive Director of the Panhandle Affordable Housing Alliance (PAHA),
provided a presentation, that discussed Idaho's affordability gap (slide 1-18); along with Bob Seale,
Community Development Director for the City of Post Falls, who discussed code changes and updates
in Post Falls (slide 19-26); and Amy Pace, Shared Equity Coordinator for PAHA and Exec. Director of
the North Idaho Building Contractor Assoc., who discussed building data and trends (slide 27-30).

e Sen. Rabe asked how to get builders to "buy in" to the idea. Ms. Lyons responded that it was
with good conversations; she noted that many of the builder's workers were the very individuals
who needed housing and were facing affordability constraints. She recognized that the builders
were willing to reduce their margin of profit for the community.

e Rep. Harris requested more detail about the "fee simple" explanation. Ms. Lyons explained that
"fee simple" meant the lot and home; the items are deed restricted.

e Rep. Egbert inquired about the type of careers facing affordability constraints that this model
would serve. Ms. Lyons reported that a household needed to make an annual salary of $80,000.

e Cochair Redman inquired about the scaling of the project and whether the density could be
increased. Ms. Lyons stated that greater density and infill projects would allow the builders to
retain a greater portion of their margin and, hence, they would be more willing to participate.

e Mr. Grimm asked about quantifying how much housing was needed. Ms. Lyons explained that
the model was created from data that identified that 70% of individuals want to be homeowners
and 30% are content being renters. She noted that PAHA focused on the upper second quintile
and the lower and middle quintile salaries, and then determined how much housing would be
needed within the next ten years for that range based on projected growth (slide 6).

e Ms. Maupin inquired how they found downpayment assistance. Ms. Lyons commented that
one was a first-time homebuyer with an IHFA loan, two were assisted by a local foundation
in Kootenai County dedicated to assisting families with downpayments, and some had family
members assist with the funds for the downpayment

e Mr. Chadwick asked how the trust considered/dealt with builders' using a Community
Infrastructure District (CID) process in regard to the deed restricted property. Ms. Lyons explained
that the trust requested the homes be within a specific range and the builder complied.

LAND USE AND HOUSING STUDY COMMITTEE
Thursday, August 14, 2025 — Minutes — Page 2


https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250814_lhsc_03_LYONS_Final Slides for AdHoc Hsing Comm meeting 8.14.25 in Sandpoint v1.pdf

e Sen. Toews asked about an established resale cap. Ms. Lyons responded that it was a flat 2% per
year (ex.: $400,000 x .02 = 8,000 per year in equity); but even with appraisal increases, the home
is deed restricted to individuals at the sale. Sen. Toews inquired whether these homes used the
traditional real estate/realtor process. Ms. Lyons noted that they do not, which initially caused
realtors to not support the program. However, this program enables homeowners to build equity
and credit for a future purchase - maybe a larger home - that may need a realtor's assistance.
Additionally, the builder did not have to pay realtor fees for those homes.

e Ms. Maupin commented that impact fees could not be waived, and if they were, they had to be
"backfilled." Mr. Seale agreed; he had hoped to be able to defer the fees until a certificate of
occupancy was issued. Ms. Maupin noted that doing that would put the backfill on the buyer
rather than the builder. Mr. Seale noted that the builder would probably spread the fee to
elsewhere until it was recouped - essentially a carrying cost.

e Rep. Kyle inquired about barriers to building cottage-home neighborhoods. Mr. Seale responded
that the difficulty was with the infrastructure costs and also in spreading the cost of the land
across the residence sale prices.

With the conclusion of the presentation, the committee took a 15-minute break.

American Planning Assoc., ID Chapter

At 10:04 a.m., Jonathan Spendlove, Government Liaison and City of Twin Falls Planning and Zoning
Director (slide 1-5), Mauri Knott, Chapter Vice President and Sr. Planner for Latah County (slide
6-8), and Hilary Patterson, Chapter President and Coeur d'Alene Development Director (slide 9-10),
provided an overview of the American Planning Assoc., ID Chapter.

e Mr. Grimm applauded the importance of putting in the work up-front for a comprehensive plan
to mitigate any community opposition that may arise later in the process.

e Mr. Chadwick noted that courts were requiring a more thorough statement in the approval of
such projects; he lamented that great projects were delayed and become expensive projects due
to the not-in-my-backyard (NIMBY) reaction from community members. Ms. Knott commented
that APA also was now required to provide more extensive reports for plan approvals.

e Ms. Maupin commented that other states have waived public comment on projects identified
as "restricted." She encouraged a discussion to address the super majority requirement for
infrastructure bond approval.

Housing Solutions Partnership

At 10:35 a.m., Kiki Miller, Coeur d'Alene City council member and founder of Housing Solutions
Partnership, provided a presentation on Housing Solutions Partnership: Kootenai County along with
James Casper, Executive Director of Habitat for Humanity of North Idaho.

e Cochair Redman asked for more detail about the realtors' silent second program. Ms. Miller
commented that the program could be stacked with other loan programs, such as a first-time
homebuyer loan or a developer's internal program. It would be designed by the regional realtors
along with the loan application process.

e Mr. Grimm proposed that Idaho Code be amended to allow tourism tax money be allocated to
resort cities to address affordable housing, rather than the focus on marketing it now has. Ms.
Miller supported that idea. Ms. Maupin supported the idea and proposed that counties be
included.

At 11:30 a.m., the committee recessed for lunch.

At 12:30 p.m., Cochair Woodward called the meeting to order and requested a motion on the
minutes for the June 27, 2025, meeting. A motion was made to approve the minutes of the June
27 meeting; it was seconded; the motion passed with a unanimous vote.

LAND USE AND HOUSING STUDY COMMITTEE
Thursday, August 14, 2025 — Minutes — Page 3


https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250814_lhsc_04_PATTERSON_APA Idaho Presentation 8.14.2025(final).pdf
https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250814_lhsc_05_MILLER_SCR103  8 12 2025.pdf

Due to technical difficulties, Chris Dorrington, slotted to speak at 12:30 on the agenda, was unable
to present to the committee

Coeur d'Alene Vacation Rental Alliance
At 12:35 p.m., Melissa Radford, Coeur d'Alene Vacation Rental Alliance, provided her presentation
Safeguarding Property Rights for Vacation Rentals to the committee.

e Ms. Maupin commented that she could attest to some of the negative effects caused by users of
vacation and short-term rentals (STRs), both as a city council member and as a resident living
beside such rentals, but she acknowledged that STRs were financial contributors to the economy
of resort cities. She supported a commercial tax to be placed on the rentals as they are operated
as businesses. She also stressed the need for oversight of STRs, citing health safety issues and
parking/traffic issues for both residents and tourists who may not be familiar with the area.

e Mr. Grimm noted that one solution would not work for every community, and he cautioned the
committee to allow for "right-sized" solutions with any proposed legislation.

e Mr. Adams asked what city had a good oversight or regulation model. Ms. Radford cited
Coeur d'Alene.

e Cochair Woodward inquired whether Ms. Radford felt that zoning was unconstitutional. Ms.
Radford did not believe it to be unconstitutional but stated that it could infringe upon a property
owner's rights.

e Rep. Harris wondered whether data existed that compared short-term and long-term rentals:
fees, restrictions, valuation, etc. Ms. Radford believed there was.

® Rep. Egbert inquired how the STRs should be compared to other types of rentals. Ms. Radford
responded that it was residential use of property and that it was not a commercial entity even
though money was made on the use of the property.

With the conclusion of the presentation, the committee took a 10-minute break.

Committee Discussion: Review Ideas/Proposals

At 1:30 p.m., the committee members divided themselves among four previously identified, working
group topics. Members were given time to share contact information and identify a date when the
smaller working group would meet to discuss solutions/recommendations to the identified issues.
Recommendations (local, legislative, etc.) from the small work groups were to be submitted to the
committee secretary on or before Friday, September 19th in order for those items to be compiled
and submitted to the committee as a whole for discussion at the Friday, September 26th meeting.

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:50 p.m.

LAND USE AND HOUSING STUDY COMMITTEE
Thursday, August 14, 2025 — Minutes — Page 4


https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250814_lhsc_08_RADFORD_Housing Commitee Presentaion 08-2025.pdf
https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250814_lhsc_09_COMMITTEE WORKGROUPS.pdf
https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250814_lhsc_09_COMMITTEE WORKGROUPS.pdf

